City of Seattle Request for Proposal # DIT-3543
Addendum 
Dated 12/03/2015

The following is additional information regarding Request for Proposal # DIT-3543, titled “IT Service Management” released on 11/16/2015.  The due date and time for responses will remain as 12/09/2015 @ 3:00PM (Pacific).  This addendum includes both questions from prospective proposers and the City’s answers, and revisions to the RFP.  This addendum is hereby made part of the RFP and therefore, the information contained herein shall be taken into consideration when preparing and submitting a proposal.
	Item #
	Date Received
	Date Answered
	Vendor’s Question
	City’s Answer
	RFP Revisions

	1
	11/16
	11/20
	Would the City be willing to extend the submittal date?
	The City will not extend the submittal date.
	None.

	2
	11/19
	11/20
	Concerning the Minimum Qualifications:
1) Would it be possible to review this section?
 
2) Due to our close relationship with the software editor, would it be possible to use reference clients from both of us (implementer and software editor)? 
 
3) Furthermore, with our software being a very scalable solution, our clients are from organizations of different size and type. So, would it be possible to use references customers supporting a much smaller number of business users, over less than 2 years?
	The City will not make any changes to the RFP Minimum Qualifications.  Any proposer that does not meet all of the minimum qualifications will be rejected.
	None.

	3
	11/19
	11/20
	I noticed that this RFP requires companies to disclose ‘financial information.  My company is a privately held company and per policy, does not disclose financial information to external parties.

Question #1:  Does not submitting this information preclude my company from being eligible to win this competition?
Question #2:  If financial information is NOT required, will non-disclosure decrease our eligibility to win this competition?
	The financial information requested is for informational purposes only and is not evaluated or scored.  Failure to provide this information will not disqualify or decrease your company’s opportunity to be awarded this contract.  
	None.

	4
	11/23
	11/23
	The RFP states 150 concurrent users. Is this to say that 150 individuals are in the solution simultaneously or that roughly 50 people are in the solution simultaneously at any given time?
	The requirement is for 150 concurrent users on average. This means on any given day there are going to be about 150 users actively using the system at the same time.  So to answer the question, 150 simultaneous users.
	None.

	5
	11/24
	11/24
	Regarding data encryption at rest, does the entire database need to be encrypted?  Or can encryption be determined as required on a field by field basis?
	Encryption can be determined on a field by field basis.
	None.

	6
	11/24
	11/24
	The RFP says an implementer will be selected in a separate solicitation. However, "ITSM Management Response.docx” requests implementation details in section 2 "Project Response and Schedule” and section 3 “Proposed Staff” of “ITSM Management Response Response.docx”. Can those be left TBD for implementation partners to complete?
	Section 2 and 3 of the Management Response do not apply in this RFP.  These sections will not be evaluated or scored.  Vendors may leave these sections blank if they wish.
	None.

	7
	11/24
	11/24
	To reduce printed pages, can supplemental documentation like white papers be provided on the flash drive only?
	No, the City prefers that any supplemental information be added to end of each hard copy submitted.  This is to ensure that each City evaluator will have access to the supplemental information. 
	None.

	8
	11/24
	11/24
	Will the solution integrate with an existing client management product(s) for the 15,000 desktop/laptops/tablets? Is yes, which product(s)?
	Yes, SCCM
	None.

	9
	11/24
	11/24
	What is the difference between an Active User and Defined User?
	800 – Total defined users of the tool (500 active, 300 infrequent users running reports, viewing data and running queries)

500 – Active users using the tool on a near-daily basis

150 – users concurrently logged on the tool at any given time

75 – Of the 800 defined users, 75 are management type users (light users approving requests and running reports)
	None.

	10
	11/24
	11/24
	What is the total number of named users that will manage tickets other than their own?
	800
	None.

	11
	11/24
	11/24
	Does the City have a preference between a hosted solution or an on-premise solution?
	The City has no preference.
	None.

	12
	11/24
	11/24
	Must the solution being proposed be compliant with all Mandatory Technical and Functional Requirements as defined in line 36 “The solution is compliant with City regulatory requirements; e.g. PCI, CJIS, NERC CIP, HIPPA?
	This requirement is unclear and has been removed from the Mandatory Technical and Functional Requirements

	The requirement was removed from the Mandatory Technical and Functional Requirements.
The following bullet was added to Section 3:

· The chosen solution whether vendor-hosted or on-premise, will meet the regulatory requirements as determined by the City’s departments which may include but not limited to: NERC CIP, CJIS, PCI, HIPAA.


	13
	11/24
	11/24
	How should we treat the ITSM SaaS SOW found in attachment #4? We do not feel that this requires a statement of work.
	Please ignore the SaaS SOW template found in attachment #4.  This template is not appropriate for software-only solicitations.
	None.

	14
	11/24
	11/24
	Will a proposer be required to provide training or is the training going to be done by the implementer? 
	The City does not require the successful proposer to provide training for this solicitation.  Training will be part of the scope of work for the implementer.
	None.

	15
	11/24
	11/25
	Would the City change Mandatory Qualification 4.2 to remove the 3-year requirement for SaaS solutions?  


	No, the City will keep the requirement as-is.
	None.

	16
	11/24
	11/25
	Please provide more details regarding how each of the users listed below will access the system and what they need to access in terms of the data, dashboards, reports etc. 

•         750 Total IT Positions

•         75 IT Management Positions 

•         500 Active Users

•         800 Defined Users


	100 – heavy daily users (Service Desk, Desktop Support)

400 - core users responding and updating tickets (Technical Teams)

225 - infrequent users updating, browsing tickets and running reports (Supervisors, project teams)
75 – management users approving requests, running reports and dashboards,

800 – Total users
	None.

	17
	11/25
	12/1
	Clause 8.12 states “To be responsive, Vendors must be prepared to enter into a Contract substantially the same as the attached Contract.”  If the following replacements or changes are made, would the City consider the signed contract to be “substantially the same” or not?
	The City cannot pre-negotiate the contract terms & conditions and cannot answer questions about specific edits to the contract that the vendor plans to propose.  Once an Intent to Award has been issued, only then will the City engage with the vendor in contract negotiations.
	None.

	18
	11/30
	12/1
	Is there a proposed budget for the project that results from the RFP award?  What is that budget?
	There is no predefined budget


	None.

	19
	11/30
	12/1
	Does the organization prefer CapEX or OpEx spend for this project?
	No preference


	None.

	20
	11/30
	12/1
	Can the Organization explain (at a high level) how it came up with the requirements for this RFP?
	Requirements were defined with appropriate stakeholders and using ITIL best practice references


	None.

	21
	11/30
	12/1
	Is there a preferred vendor list that the Organization has referenced in preparation of this RFP?
	No


	None.

	22
	11/30
	12/1
	Does the organization use an approved software vendor list that all software must be purchased through?
	No


	None.

	23
	11/30
	12/1
	Does the organization use an approved Professional Services vendor list that all Professional Services must be purchased through?
	No


	None.

	24
	11/30
	12/1
	Will there be a period where some of the responding vendors are asked to provide live demonstrations of their proposed solution? What is this period?
	Yes; 2016-02-02 to 2016-02-11


	None.

	25
	11/30
	12/1
	Please explain how the organization sees the relationship of the Service Desk System, and any other relevant systems in the environment (i.e. what are the expected integration points?).
	All integration points are not yet defined. Major APIs expected with Active Directory, O365 Exchange and SharePoint, Oracle PeopleSoft v8.8 and v9.2
	None.

	26
	11/30
	12/1
	Will Data need to be migrated from the old system to the new system?
	Certain metadata and system variables. No tickets (open or closed) are expected to be migrated


	None.

	27
	11/30
	12/1
	Is the Service Desk technical solution expected to ‘discover’ network based equipment?  How many (estimate) network based devices are ‘in scope’ for this RFP?
	Discovery is a ‘Could Have’ requirement; 15,000 workstations (desktops, notebooks, tablets); 3,000 servers; 4,000 mobile phones; 1,500 network-specific devices (routers, switches, etc.)


	None.

	28
	11/30
	12/1
	What is the count of in scope devices for each of the following classifications: ipads, printers, end user devices, routers, switches, etc.
	See #27 response


	None.

	29
	11/30
	12/1
	How many of the in scope devices will continue to be managed by another 'repository' such as SCCM?
	15,000 workstations will be ‘CIs’ within the selected tool; SCCM will still be used for software deployment to these workstations


	None.

	30
	11/30
	12/1
	How and/or what systems are the requests being collected today (i.e. what is the current state besides HEAT if any)?
	Cherwell’s IT Service Management used for exception processing, Calero’s Pinnacle used to manage desk phones.


	None.

	31
	11/30
	12/1
	How many licenses of ‘existing system’ do you have today?  How many are named and how many concurrent licenses?
	We have a 150 concurrent user license with 800 defined users.
	None.

	32
	11/30
	12/1
	In addition to Active Directory and Email system, are there any other systems you will require integration to in the initial phase of the project?
	See #25 response


	None.

	33
	11/30
	12/1
	How many environments will need to be deployed to, and maintained? (i.e. Development environment, TEST/QA environment, and Production environment?  Or some other combination?)
	3 environments, DEV, TEST/QA and PROD


	None.

	34
	12/1
	12/1
	We respectfully request that we have additional time to complete a quality Response to you RFP.
	Please see Item #1.
	None.

	35
	12/3/15
	12/3/15
	Some of the cells in the mandatory response spreadsheets are locked. This creates formatting issues for the required hard copy responses. Can the City provide the password to unlock them?
	Yes, the pass word is:
jeremy11
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